ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE RESOURCES STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 9, 2005
1: 02 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Jay Ranras, Co-Chair
Represent ati ve Ral ph Samuel s, Co-Chair
Representative Jim El ki ns
Representative Carl Gatto
Representative Gabriell e LeDoux
Representative Kurt O son

Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Harry Crawford
Representative Mary Kapsner

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Al l menbers present
COMWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE JO NT RESCLUTI ON NO. 6

Relating to the labeling of fish and shellfish to identify the
country of origin and to distinguish between wild and farned
fish and shellfish.

- MOVED CSHIR6(FSH) OUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 107

"An Act providing for the award of full actual attorney fees and
costs to a person aggrieved by unlawful obstruction or hindrance
of hunting, fishing, or viewng of fish or game; anending Rules
79 and 82, Alaska Rules of GCivil Procedure; and anmending Rule
508, Al aska Rul es of Appellate Procedure.”

- HEARD AND HELD
HOUSE BI LL NO. 130
"An Act granting certain state land to the University of Al aska
and establishing the university research forest; and providing
for an effective date.”

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE -1- February 9, 2005



PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HIR 6

SHORT TI TLE: LABELI NG OF FI SH PRODUCTS
SPONSOR( S): REPRESENTATI VE(S) KERTTULA

01/ 19/ 05
01/ 19/ 05
01/ 26/ 05
01/ 26/ 05
01/ 26/ 05
01/ 26/ 05
01/ 31/ 05
01/ 31/ 05
02/ 02/ 05
02/ 02/ 05

NN NN AN AN AN AN NN

I T

02/ 02/ 05
02/ 02/ 05
02/ 02/ 05
02/ 09/ 05

NN AN AN

BILL: HB 107

READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
FSH, RES

FSH AT 8:30 AM CAPI TOL 124

-- Meeting Cancel ed --

RES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124
Schedul ed But Not Heard

RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

-- Meeting Cancel ed --

FSH RPT CS(FSH) NT 6DP

DP: HARRI'S, ELKINS, SALMON, W LSON,
THOVAS, LEDOUX

FSH AT 8:30 AM CAPI TOL 124

Moved CSHIR 6(FSH) Qut of Conmittee
M NUTE( FSH)

RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

SHORT TI TLE: ATTY FEES: HUNTI NG FI SHI NG | NTERFERENCE
SPONSOR(S): REPRESENTATI VE(S) RAMRAS

01/ 24/ 05 (H)
01/ 24/ 05 (H)
02/ 02/ 05 (H)
02/ 02/ 05 (H)
02/ 02/ 05 (H)
02/ 09/ 05 (H)

BILL: HB 130

READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
RES, JUD

RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( RES)

RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

SHORT TI TLE: UNI VERSI TY LAND GRANT/ STATE FOREST
SPONSOR(S): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

02/ 07/ 05 (H)
02/ 07/ 05 (H)
02/ 09/ 05 (H)

W TNESS REG STER

HOUSE RES COW TTEE

READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
RES, FIN
RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

- 2- February 9, 2005



JI' M POUND, St af f

to Representative Jay Ranras

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented CSHB 107(RES) on behal f of Senator
Ranr as, sponsor.

ROBERT LCEFFLER, Director

D vision of Mning, Land and Water

Department of Natural Resources (DNR)

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 130.

JOE BEEDLE, Vice President for Finance

Chi ef Financial Oficer and Treasurer Trustee
Land G ant Endownent Fund

University of Al aska

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 130.

CECI L RANNEY, Assenbly Menber

Kodi ak | sl and Borough Assenbly

Kodi ak, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 130.

ANl SA BERRY
Port Al exander, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 130.

LANI BRENNAN
Anchor age and Baranof Warm Springs, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 130.

JULI E KAVANAUGH
Kodi ak, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 130.

MARY MONTGOVERY, Director

Uni versity Land Managenent O fice

Uni versity of Al aska

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 130.

M KE ROUND, Assistant General Manager

Sout hern Sout heast Regi onal Aquacul ture Associ ati on ( SSRAA)
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 130.

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 3- February 9, 2005



KENNETH DUGGETT, Executive Director

Uni ted Sout heast Alaska G Il Netters

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 130.

| VAR MALUTI N

Kodi ak Area Native Associ ation

Kodi ak, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 130.

BRUCE WALLACE, Commerci al Fi sherman
Ket chi kan, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 130.

JOHN MARTI N JR

Tenakee Tribal Council of Elders

Tenakee, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 130.

JOHN MARTI N SR

Tenakee, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 130.
ACTI ON NARRATI VE

COCHAIR JAY RAMRAS called the House Resources Standing

Commttee neeting to order at 1:02:06 PM Represent ati ves
LeDoux, ElIkins, Ranras, Sanuels, Seaton, Oson, and Gatto were
present at the call to order. Representatives Crawford and

Kapsner arrived as the neeting was in progress. Representati ve
Beth Kerttula was al so present.

HIR 6- LABELI NG OF FI SH PRODUCTS

CO CHAI R RAMRAS announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE JO NT RESCLUTION NO. 6 Relating to the |abeling of fish
and shellfish to identify the country of origin and to
di stingui sh between wild and farned fish and shel | fi sh.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noved to report CSHIR 6(FSH) out of
commttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHIR 6(FSH was
reported fromthe House Resources Standing Comrittee.

The commttee took an at-ease from 1:02: 19 PMto 1:03: 44 PM

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 4- February 9, 2005



CO CHAIR SAMUELS said that HIR 6 was not discussed because a
letter regarding the fish labeling issue was already sent from
the legislature to neet a federal tineline.

HB 107- ATTY FEES: HUNTI NG FI SHI NG | NTERFERENCE

1: 04: 06 PM

CO- CHAI R RAMRAS announced that the next order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 107 "An Act providing for the award of ful
actual attorney fees and costs to a person aggrieved by unlawf ul
obstruction or hindrance of hunting, fishing, or viewi ng of fish
or gane; anending Rules 79 and 82, Alaska Rules of GCvil
Procedure; and anending Rule 508, Alaska Rules of Appellate
Procedure. ™"

CO CHAIR SAMJELS noved to adopt the CSHB 107, Version 24-
LS0444\F Utermohle, 2/7/05, as a work draft.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON obj ect ed for di scussion purposes.

The commttee took an at-ease from1:05 PMto 1:09:25 PM

1: 09: 38 PM

JIM POUND, Staff to Representative Jay Ranras, described the
changes made to HB 107. He said "we added in |anguage that was
in the section 790 which was the proceeding of the original
bill." He added that "in discussions with the Al aska State
Troopers and the court system these are additions that they
t hought would help, particularly with the court systenmlis fisca
note, possibly bringing it down to zero."

MR. POUND noted that the first addition is on page 2, lines 4
and 5, "this is based on a crimnal situation in which the
i ndi vidual actually cut a trap line and released the aninmals,
but because of the existing statute the only thing they could
charge the individual with was crimnal mschief." The second
change, he said, is on page 2, lines 14 and 15, and is based on
a suit that was recently settl ed. He said the state was sued
after a fish and wldlife enforcenent helicopter disrupted a
comercial fishing operation. M. Pound said the change wll
protect police officers and |law enforcenment officials from being
sued for obstruction.

MR. POUND stated that regarding full attorney fees, "in nost of
the cases that we'll be looking at that's in Section 791, that's

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 5- February 9, 2005



the original |anguage of the bill, we are normally dealing with
sonmething that [has] already had a crimnal conviction. This is
primarily | anguage intended to further induce individuals not to
obstruct people enjoying the Alaska lifestyle, simlar to what
the crimnal side of it would be." M. Pound said the origina
| anguage in statute contains the term "intentionally obstruct,"”
which is described in Black's Law as he read: "to do sonething
purposefully and not accidentally,” and "a person acts
intentionally if he desires to cause consequences of his acts or
he believes that consequences are substantially certain to
result.”

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he noticed that obstruction offenses
do not apply to lawful <conpetitive practices anong persons
engaged in lawful hunting, fishing, or trapping. He expressed
his concern that the |l aws regarding the distance between nets in

a gill net fishery may result in unlawful fishing practices.
"Therefore,” he said, "comercial fishing in those situations
would be included in this full award of attorney fees for the
plaintiff." He asked M. Pound if that is correct.

1:14: 12 PM

MR. POUND said he believes Representative Seaton is correct.

CO CHAIR RAMRAS closed public testinony after no one cane
forward to testify.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON renoved his objection to the adoption of
CSHB 107, Version 24-LS0444\F Uternohle, 2/7/05,. There being
no further objection, Version F was before the conmttee.

CO CHAIR SAMUELS noved to report CSHB 107, Version F, out of
comm ttee.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON obj ect ed.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said that there could be wunanticipated

consequences by including commercial fishernen. If a fisherman
is sued for having nets too close to another fisherman's nets,
the plaintiff could get full attorney fees and the defendant
would be limted by Rule 82 of the Alaska Rules of GCvil
Procedure. "So | do not think that we have solved that problem
inthis bill," he said.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX said she has the sane problem with the
| egislation, and it "goes beyond the commercial fishing aspect

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 6- February 9, 2005



of things, although | see that, actually, as the nost

significant problem"” She said that the ability of the

plaintiff to get full attorney fees and the defendant, even if

fully exonerated, is limted to 30 percent of the attorney fees
"that just strikes nme as fundanentally unfair.”

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said that the legislation also takes out
the word "reasonable,” so that there won't be consideration of
t he nunber of |awyers. The defendant could be charged full and
actual attorney fees "no matter how egregious" the costs and
fees are, he said. He also warned that "we may have people
| oading up attorney fees to make the other person default on the
case instead of having the case go to court.™

1:18: 39 PM
REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said a person suing for $3,000 could have

attorney fees build up to $10, 000. Wthout Rule 82 a litigant
could hire a "bank of attorneys"”™ knowi ng he or she could get

t hose fees back. He said he is concerned that there wll be
people not willing to take a risk because they could afford to
pay judgnent but not attorney fees, and intimdation will cause

themto default in the judgnent.
1: 20: 00 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS said that he had the sane concern. "
can't support this."

1: 20: 15 PM

CO CHAIR RAMRAS said, "...let's take it back and we'll work on
it some nore, clean it up, and bring it back."

[ HB 107 was hel d over.]

HB 130- UNI VERSI TY LAND GRANT/ STATE FOREST

1: 20: 38 PM

CO CHAI R RAMRAS announced that the next order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 130 "An Act granting certain state land to
the University of Alaska and establishing the university
research forest; and providing for an effective date.” He
announced that it is not the intent of the commttee to amend or
nove HB 130 today.

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE -7- February 9, 2005



1:21: 02 PM

ROBERT LOEFFLER, Director, Division of Mning, Land and Water,

Department of Natural Resources, said that he wll cover "the
probl ens and opportunities t hat this bill addr esses. "
"Currently our land grant University of Alaska has a |and grant
of approximtely 170,000 acres,"” he said. "It is one of the
smallest land grants of any of our western state land grant
institutions.” He added that the i1idea of adding additional
| ands has been addr essed numer ous times by previ ous
| egi sl atures, nost recently in 2001 when a bill was proposed to
transfer 260,000 acres to the wuniversity. The bill had a

selection process that was cunbersone and prevented the
university from getting good |ands, he said. This current bil
avoids a long, expensive selection process, because DNR has
already listed 71 parcels, he said. He added that the cost to
the state will conme only fromtitle searches, identification of
existing rights, and the necessary work to retain public access
and easenments. M. Loeffler listed the advantages of HB 130: it
is much cheaper, it finishes the problem quickly, it provides a
stabl e useful portfolio to the university, and it elimnates the
"cloud on title" that could occur from lands being in a |inbo
status while the selection process proceeds.

1:24:20 PM

MR. LOEFFLER said that HB 130 will transfer 260,000 acres to the
University of Al aska. One third of the lands are for
educati onal purposes, which are not designed primarily to nmake
nmoney, including a 51,000-acre research forest, which wll be
managed by DNR but dedicated for purposes of research. He said
it wll be one of the largest university-owed forests in the
nati on. There are 12 properties statewide proposed for

educati onal purposes, conprising 90,000 acres.

MR. LCEFFLER said that another 90,000 acres will be conprised of

prospective oil and gas |ands, opposite Nenana, which will be a
potential long-term income source for the University. He said
that if comercial quantities of gas are found, the gas wll be

exportabl e to Fairbanks.

MR. LOCEFFLER said that the final 80,000 acres in SB 130, are
near- and md-term investnment properties, which can be turned
into cash nore quickly. These are |ocated throughout the state,
but half the acreage is in Southeast Al aska. He expl ai ned that
DNR no | onger has valuable lands that are good for "subdividing
that can be quickly turned into cash”" on the road system near

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 8- February 9, 2005



Anchorage or Fairbanks, because "DNR s hol di ngs have been picked
over."

CO CHAI R SAMUELS asked if the university has the sane statew de
rules as DNR for leasing oil and gas | ands.

MR. LCEFFLER said that currently there is a license on the oil
and gas l|land by Andex Corporation, so that exploration and
devel opment rights will continue to belong to Andex, and they
will operate under their DNR |ease, but if Andex |eaves, the
uni versity woul d operate under different |easing rules than DNR

1: 28: 52 PM

MR. LOEFFLER said the nobst valuable lands are the 44 parcels
t hroughout Sout heast Al aska. During the selection process DNR
excluded Division of Forestry lands because it would reduce
DNR s allowable cut which in turn would reduce the anount of

tinmber going to local mlls. He said DNR al so excluded any
lands that it was planning to sell within the next five years.
He said that DNR also tried to exclude "sensitive areas.” He
explained that it was inpractical to go to all the comunities,
so DNR used its area plan process. DNR "tried to |ook at only
the lands that are categorized in a "devel opnment category -
particularly settlement or general use.” He added that of the

44 parcels, 37 are classified for settlenent or general use. He
said that "the inportance of the Southeast parcels are that they

are the major near-term incone source for this package." M .
Loeffler said that DNR would have liked to pick parcels that
weren't in "sonmeone's backyard,” but it is not possible;

everywhere is in soneone's backyard, he said.

CO-CHAIR SAMUELS asked M. Loeffler to describe the difference
bet ween how the University and DNR woul d sell | and.

MR. LOEFFLER answered that DNR has an expansive public process,
first going through an area plan to classify a parcel for
settlenment, followed by a best interest finding with public
notice, and then DNR sells it conpetitively.

1:32:13 PM

CO- CHAIR SAMUELS asked if there is a state program that does
t hat on an ongoi ng basi s.

MR. LOEFFLER answered in the affirmati ve.

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 9- February 9, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted that when the state sells |and they
are required to maintain access rights, and he asked if the
university lands wll have the same process.

MR. LOEFFLER replied that nost of DNR s maps for the university
transfers show easenents, but the law says DNR would identify
those areas during the title process, including navigable
waters, which will be retained in DNR nmanagenent.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the sane process is done by DNR
whether it is selling to the university or to an individual

MR. LOEFFLER sai d yes.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD said that he couldn't wunderstand how
many of the |ands were chosen. He expressed his desire to get
the nost noney to the university in the shortest anmount of tine,
and that sonme parcels don't |look narketable. Biorka Island is a
sea lion pull out, he said, so how can the university develop it
and turn it into noney?

MR. LOEFFLER said that he <can't address Biorka Island in
particular, but, in general, DNR went through a |and-use process
focusing on parcels identified as settlenment or general use. He
added that Biorka Island was found to be appropriate for renote
cabin sites.

1: 35: 27 PM

Representative Crawmford said that he was told that there was a
smal| parcel in Wllow, which is near a |arge popul ation center,
and that is where we should be putting state land into private
hands. That is where there is a need, he said.

MR. LCEFFLER said that he agrees, and if DNR had land there it
woul d. Most of it has gone to the Alaska Mental Health Trust,
to nunicipalities, or previously to the university. "So the
state doesn't own | and near roads in that area,"” he said.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD said he thought there were still many
t housands of acres in the WI I ow area.

MR. LCEFFLER answered that the capital site has 60,000 acres and
that a lot of it is unsuitable for settlenent.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked what use the university can nmake of
t he rocket |aunch range in Kodi ak.

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE -10- February 9, 2005



MR. LOEFFLER deferred to the university, but he added that it
dovetails with the wuniversity's ownership of the Poker Flats
Rocket Range for simlar research

1:37:49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS said he was confused about nany of the
parcels, in particular the land in Neets Bay, which is the
watershed for the Southern Southeast Regional Aquaculture
Associ ation (SSRAA) hatchery. He noted that the hatchery
generates about $28 mllion in goods and services annually to

Ket chi kan's econony, and he thinks it is the nobst successful
fish hatchery in the state. Representative Elkins questions why
DNR woul d want to jeopardi ze the watershed and that he is "upset
about it."

MR. LCEFFLER said DNR doesn't want to jeopardize the Neets Bay
hatchery, but it is a valid existing right no matter who owns
the land. He added that the surrounding area is also inportant,
and his expectation is that the wuniversity would be a good
nmanager .

1: 39: 40 PM

CO CHAIR RAMRAS noted that there is "certainly a constituency”
that is "concerned about precisely that."

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS questions whether the Neets Bay watershed
IS protected.

MR. LOEFFLER said that the hatchery's |ease doesn't address the
wat ershed, and DNR s plan was to protect the hatchery watershed,
and he "doubts [the university] wll do different."

1: 40: 36 PM

JOE BEEDLE, Vice President for Finance, Chief Financial Oficer
and Treasurer Trustee for the Land Gant Endowrent Fund,
University of Alaska, said that it is the Land Grant Trust that
takes the receipt from lands sold by the university and holds,
i nvests, and provides noney to the university. He stated that
land is a very inportant aspect of land grant universities, and
the University of Alaska has received the smallest anount of
land of any land grant school except for Delaware and Hawaii .
The original intent of land grant universities, he said, was to
encour age engagenent with the community and to create a funding

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE -11- February 9, 2005



sour ce. He said the challenge to DNR of finding |and was "not

insignificant." DNR needed to select land in a way that was
consistent with its area plans. M. Beedle said that the
university was holding informational neetings this week. He
stated that nost people are not aware of DNR s area plans in
spite of efforts by the state. In the selection process, DNR

had to retain state forest lands for tinber harvesting, it had
to retain five years of its own supply of land sales, and it had
to protect inportant habitat. M. Beedle added that there are
al ready designated parcels for settlenent, developnent, and
recreation in the area plans. He said that "recreational |ands”
mean |ands for recreational cabins or tourism He added that
the university does not have specific plans for the use of the
lands in HB 130, and it plans to work with professionals and
| ocal interest groups to ascertain a parcel's best use.

1:45: 43 PM

MR. BEEDLE said that the wuniversity has a |land nanagenent
process which includes Ilong-term strategic plans; annual
devel opment plans to identify conpatible and econom c uses;
annual sales plans, which are on the university's web site and
include public notice; and oversight by its board of regents.

M. Beedle said that the wuniversity has $130 mllion in an
endownent, which pays out five percent of a five-year average of
the fund bal ance. He added that approximately $5 nmillion a year

goes to the university which is about one percent of its budget.

MR. BEEDLE reported that it is only speculative, but he is
optimstic that the oil and gas lands will provide funds for the
university to the tune of about $2-3 mllion a year after 20
years. Since 1987, the university has sold 1,146 properties for
a total of 15,000 acres, which has brought in approximtely $44
mllion at principle. The university's tinber sales bring in
about the sanme anount of noney. He said it is very serious
business for the university, but it is not a large part of its
budget; however, "it's the discretionary receipt authority
that's so valuable for wus.” M. Beedle concluded that the
university "looks forward to the passage of this |legislation.”

1: 50: 25 PM

CO CHAI R RAMRAS asked what percentage is the $130 mllion to the
university's total endowrents.

MR. BEEDLE responded that there is a foundation wth $125
mllion in its fund. He said there is another $50 million in

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE -12- February 9, 2005



funds that are not endowed that come from such things as
donations for a building fund, grants for scholarships, and
museum donati ons, which are all held and invested until needed.

1:51: 52 PM

CO- CHAIR RAMRAS asked if it is fair to say the university is
trying to fulfill its mssion as a true land grant college, and
the long-termplan is to build the endowrent up simlarly to the
centuries-old universities across the United States.

MR. BEEDLE responded that other land grant universities receive
about ten to twenty-five percent of their revenue from I and,
conpared to the University of Alaska's one percent. M. Beedle
added that Al aska's university is very small and new at the gane
of endowrent .

CO- CHAlI R RAMRAS asked what Harvard's endownent base is.

MR. BEEDLE responded that Harvard has a $28 billion endownrent
with returns of 15 percent, and sone of its nanagers are paid
mllions of dollars. Harvard' s noney is invested in hedge funds
and new private equities.

CO CHAIR RAMRAS said "I just want to reiterate that this is the
big plan...to try to fulfill sone of the prom se and directive
that we've had from President Hamlton which is to make the
University of Alaska a truly conpetitive institution across the
country and globally by devel oping resources |ike this endowrent
and by fulfilling the land grant prom se and getting land into
the hands of private individuals and at the same time enriching
the university to get us on the right track over the next
decades. "

1: 54: 27 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked what the university wants with the
rocket |aunch in Kodi ak.

VR. BEEDLE responded that this parcel was suggested by
university people many years ago. The university, he said, does
not have an emnent |aw school or nedical school, but it is
known for its Ceophysical Institute and its study of northern
latitudes. M. Beedle noted that satellites can be interrogated
much nore often at Al aska's |atitude. He said the university's
investigations of global change and the aurora give the
institute international prom nence. The institute also studies

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE -13- February 9, 2005



the atnosphere, and it has huge contracts with NASA and it
boasts investnents from Japan to coordinate with the CGeophysi cal
I nstitute. The wuniversity also owns Poker Flat where the
institute built a rocket range with the Departnment of Defense,
NASA, and other agencies, and it is an area of excellence that
the university takes pride in and wants to expand, he said. He
added that land around the launch site will "give us a place at
the table”" whether it is research or a future Kennedy Space
Center.

1:58:11 PM

MR. BEEDLE stated that near Poker Flat there is a park and a
wild and scenic river, and the university gets "high marks" with
how it interacts with the comunity. He said he thinks Kodiak
will be pleased to work with the university.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked that since the president of the
university chairs the board of the rocket launch facility,
doesn't that give the university "a place at the table." She
also asked if the wuniversity could |ease the land and have
simlar clout.

MR. BEEDLE said the university does not need to own land to do
research, but there are restrictions, and he said that the
university will have a stronger seat at that table if it owned
t he | and.

2:00:49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked about a recent wuniversity sale of
real estate in Palner and if that noney went into the endowrent.

MR. BEEDLE said there are restrictions on federal grant | ands
that the university gets, and it must go into the land grant

trust. He said there have been other processes by which the
university has gained |and. The Palmer Research Farm was
provided to the university without restriction. The university
will receive $5 nmillion for a very small piece of property
because there is a willing buyer and willing seller, he said.
The Land Grant Trust Fund will also buy property for investnent
pur poses.

2:04: 22 PM

REPRESENTATI VE OLSON asked if anyone has expressed interest in
the gas and oil I and.

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE -14- February 9, 2005



MR. BEEDLE responded that DNR sold the exploration permt to

Andex Corporation, which covers over 400,000 acres. Doyon
Regi onal Corporation also owns sonme surface and subsurface, and
it has been doing exploration. M. Beedle said the potential

| ooks very prom sing, and investors have recently put in noney.
It shows excitenent, but it needs a | ot nore studies, he said.

2: 06: 58 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked what would happen if the state
transfers property to university and then wants it back.

MR. BEEDLE said that the university has traded land with the
state, and it would be | ooking for fair val ue.

REPRESENTATI VE ELKI NS asked why Neets Bay was sel ect ed.

2:08: 20 PM

MR. BEEDLE said that DNR, not the wuniversity, selected that
parcel, and it was a surprise. But, M. Beedle said, he

believes the university could work w th SSRAA That area has
been extensively clear cut, he added, and it would be wong to

clear cut it again. If the university owns it, it would do a
sel ective helicopter cut. He said he thinks there are tourism
opportunities, "I believe the very fact that those fish return

there are an asset that has value to other people, just as
Kat mai [ National Park] does for bear viewi ng and the | odges that
exi st around the area - still preserving that natural habitat.
Having said that, we understand fully, having nmet wth SSRAA
three different tinmes on Monday while we were in Ketchikan, what
their concerns woul d be. W're sensitive to their issues.”

2:10:46 PM

CO CHAIR RAMRAS said that much of the lands in HB 130 will not
be highly contested; however, a few parcels could be "debate[d]
forever."

MR. BEEDLE stated that |and has as nuch enotion as famly, and
"we walk a delicate line." Al aska wants to send students to
school, he said, and the board of regents urged him to tour
Sout heast Al aska as soon as possible. "W wll be doing this,"
he said, but wll probably not be addressing controversi al
property now. It is about economic gain for the trust, he said.
He then noted a thesis done by a University of Al aska student on

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 15- February 9, 2005



custoner satisfaction with the university's |land grant process,
whi ch showed nore than 90 percent positive responses.

2:14:51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if the university would take sone of
the sensitive areas off the table to allow this bill go forward.

MR. BEEDLE said that one third of these lands are for research
another third is speculative, and the renaining incone property

is "our bread and butter." He added that there is not an over
selection, and there is not a back up list, so the university
"woul d be concerned with a dilution of the bill, but would be

interested in how it progresses through the process."”
2:17: 03 PM

CECI L RANNEY, Assenbly Menber, Kodiak Island Borough Assenbly,
said he is concerned with the 2,280 acres containing the |aunch
facility in Kodiak. This area has been controversial, he said,
and it is an inportant recreation area for the citizens. He
added that the comunity has been supportive of the |aunch
facility, and it is supportive of the university. But this bil

appeared rather suddenly, he stated, with a "cloud of
suspicion.” He said everyone needs to take a really close |ook
at the educational value of that |[and. The borough also has

concerns wth section 6, which changes sonme of the public
process, he added. The main concern is what would happen if the
university decided to dispose of the land. The borough assenbly
wants nore time to consider this, he said.

2:21:30 PM

CO CHAIR RAMRAS said the commttee is in no rush to pass the
bill out.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if DNR was taking care of the access
pr obl ens.

MR. RANNEY said that the whole area is used by many residents
for recreation.

2:22: 17 PM

CO CHAIR RAMRAS announced that he would like "to remnd the
commttee that this is not a university bill, the university is
the beneficiary, but this is the governor's bill. It was

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 16- February 9, 2005



i ntroduced by the governor, and this is a relationship between
the Departnent of Natural Resources and the University of Al aska
that has done their |land selections [which] was prom sed to them
in the Statehood Act. So the governor is not involved...it's
sonet hing that we've all got to cone to terns with it."

2:22:59 PM

ANl SA BERRY, Port Alexander, Al aska, said she really supports
the university but she is opposed to the |oss of undevel oped
state |l ands near the Port Al exander and Concl usion areas. The
bill will double the size of Port Alexander and it violates the
town's conprehensive plans by allow ng changes that are not in
accord with the town's desires, she said. She noted that recent
cooments to DNR' s area plan recommended that no hone site be
chosen from that area. The town's infrastructure can't keep up
wi th such an expansion; the water facilities are limted and the
dock is at capacity in the summer. She said she doesn't believe
these lands are a good investnent for the university because
there is already private property that has been on the narket
for years, and if the university sells lots, it would further

depress the |ocal market. She added that |ocal residents hunt
and recreate in the HB 130 areas, so the bill infringes on the
Al askan rural lifestyle. She asked that the legislature find a

way to fund the university in the nost realistic way wthout
i nfringing on |ocals.

2:25: 52 PM

LANI  BRENNAN, Baranof Property Owmers, Anchorage and Baranof
Warm Springs, said that HB 130 represents a short shrift to the
public process. She stated that the Alaska State Constitution
prohibits the disposal of land "wi thout prior public notice and
ot her safeguards of the public interest.” She opined that
saving noney is not a justification for elimnating neaningfu

public process wth appropriate scrutiny. "The bums rush,
don't-bother-us-with-the-facts approach now sought by the
adm nistration is unbecom ng of Al aska,” she said. Ms. Brennan
specifically protests the transfer of the 267 acres at Warm
Springs Bay. She said current devel opnent is:

appropriately confined mainly to a townsite which pre-
exi sted statehood, on which nany snall devel oped and
still undeveloped lots exist. The proposed disposal
woul d surround a habitat-sensitive |agoon and extend
up to Baranof Lake, a trail-accessible recreation
area. The area to be disposed is largely wetlands.. .|

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE -17- February 9, 2005



am sure you recognize that there is no way the

| egi sl ative commttee process can adequatel y
scrutinize each specific di sposal . Sonme very
knowl edgeable voices...will not be heard from in
time...Wat 1is the big rush? Pl ease follow the

constitutional approach, and neaningfully include us
Al askans in the process for state |and di sposals.

2: 30: 23 PM

JULI E KAVANAUGH, Kodi ak, said that she is a supporter of the
university, but she is against acquisition of the Kodiak parcel.
She expressed her concern that the transfer has been discussed
at length, "but it is the first that anybody in Kodiak, that I

know of, has heard of it.” If HB 130 goes through, she said,
she would like it to exclude roads and trails, which are used by
"all kinds of users." M. Kavanaugh owns a stable and uses the

area for horseback riding. She added that it is a controversia
subject in Kodiak, and requests the renoval of the Kodiak area
fromthe bill because of its sensitive nature. She suggested a
| ease of the land instead because she heard the university say
it wanted the property for status, not nonetary gain. She would
i ke guaranteed access to the area by not including roads and
trails in the transfer.

2:33: 08 PM

CO CHAI R RAMRAS asked the university for some clarification on
their sal es process and access i ssues.

MARY MONTGOMERY, Director O University Land Managenent O fi ce,
said the university has different processes for different |ands.
She said if a property is being subdivided, the university

advertises for 60 days and sends mail to all legislators and
muni ci palities. After that process, the board of regents
approves the developnment then it determnes if the property is
"feasible." She said the wuniversity hires a third-party

consultant to go to the community closest to the devel opnent and
conduct an 8- to 12-hour workshop to hear what the conmmunity
want s. The university then goes back and designs the project,
trying to consider the conmunity's concerns. The university may
put in covenants and restrictions in order to develop the I|and

in a way that is conpatible with the comunity. Finally, the
land is surveyed, platted, and offered in a conpetitive sale
The wuniversity offers its own financing, she said. She added

that if a property will not be subdivided or developed by the
university, it can be sold after a 30-day comment peri od.

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 18- February 9, 2005



2:37:09 PM

CO CHAI R RAMRAS asked how the university would address sensitive
parcels |like Neets Bay, because there is so nmuch concern about
what the university is going to do. He added that M. Beedle
and Ms. Montgonery say the university is a good steward of the
land, and "is going to go about trying to inprove the
comuni ties. Can you give us a hypothetical as to how the
uni versity woul d approach the Neets Bay area?"

2:38: 00 PM

IVS. MONTGOMERY responded that first the university wll
determine whether there is a need to develop the property

i medi ately or at all. "It may not be developable for 50
years," and many of the parcels will sit in the inventory, she
said. "W would work very closely with the community, with the

aquacul ture group, be very sensitive to water quality, and there
are laws that protect water quality," she added. She said she
can't see an inmmediate devel opnent opportunity for that area,
and it will be several years while the university evaluates its
i nventory. She added that her office can only do so many
subdi visions a year, and it usually chooses five or six parcels
to eval uate each year. She said the university "would work with
the | essee and the community to determne what's the best use of
that property.” She added that in Ketchikan the wuniversity
hol ds property that it wants to devel op, but the comunity wants
to use it to recreate, so the community is trying to purchase
t he parcel

CO CHAI R RAMRAS stated that some people are concerned that "they

will see no trespassing signs go up on university lands once
they are titled over." He asked how the lands will be treated
while the university is determining what it will do with each
par cel

M5. MONTGOMERY said the bill provides for continued public use
of the properties, and she can't think of a tinm when the
university put up a no trespassing sign. She spoke of the trai
systens on the university's canmpus, which the public is allowed
to use. "We want the public to be confortable on our |ands,"”
she said, but "we still have to generate revenue from them™
Commerci al users of university |ands need a permt, she added.

2:41:36 PM

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE -19- February 9, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said that the wuniversity's experinental
farm is used by people to take walks. There are gates but
peopl e wal k around them and he would like to reinforce that the
university doesn't "seem to take their land away from the
public, so nuch as sinply own it."

CO CHAI R RAMRAS thanked Ms. Montgonery "for debunking the myth
that the university is aterrible landlord.”

2:42: 38 PM

M KE ROUND, Assistant General Manager, Southern Sout heast
Regi onal Aquacul ture Association (SSRAA), read a letter fromthe
general manager of SSRAA, which is entered into the record. He
expressed SSRAA's strong opposition to transferring Neets Bay
land to the wuniversity based on the following (origina
punct uati on provided):

1. The Neets Creek land parcel is alnbst exactly the
smal |l watershed that is the sole source of water for

Neets Bay Hatchery and the hatchery site, which lies
in the |ower end of the parcel at saltwater.

2. The Neets Bay Hatchery site is one of the few true
production hatchery sites in Al aska that can sustain
both |arge-scale production as well as cost recovery
in a Special Harvest Area.

3. The single over-riding goal in the admnistration
of university land is to generate revenue for the
uni versity.

4. University land adm nistrators pursue two courses
in meeting their goal: if the land is appreciating in
value or provides significant revenue through use it

is held; if the land is not appreciating in value or

does not otherwi se provide funds through use it is
sold to generate revenue.

5. SSRAA is a non-profit corporation. Regi onal

commerci al salnon fishermen chose to tax thensel ves 3%
of the ex-vessel value of their harvest to initiate
funding for SSRAA in the early 1980's and continue to
do so as collateral for SSRAA's well being.

6. If SSRAA is significantly charged for use of the
Neets Bay Parcel, SSRAA would necessarily have to
i ncrease cost recovery harvest and revenue, taking
fish that would have otherwi se been harvested by
fishermen. This is in essence a tax on salnon
fi sher men.

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 20- February 9, 2005



7. If SSRAA is required to buy the land to retain its
current site, the organization will have to increase
cost recovery harvest to repay the required | oans.
Again, this is in wessence a tax on SE salnon

fi shernen.

8. If the watershed is used for another form of
resource extraction, the quantity and quality of water
in the small watershed wll |ikely be altered and

detrinmental to hatchery operations.

9. Regardless of whether both parties work in good
faith, the current goal s of Uni versity Land
adm ni stration of the Neets Creek Parcel and SSRAA are
mut ual Iy excl usi ve.

10. The University could not reach its goals wthout
significantly inpacting a non-profit organization that
woul d have to take nore from its users to neet the
i ncreased costs of operation. O put otherw se, the
University would be taxing fishernen to support its
progr amns.

11. The other alternative is the SSRAA woul d | eave the
site and either cease to exist or reduce production to
a fraction of what the organization now produces. This
would result in a significant loss in harvest for SE
fi sher men.

12. Any long or short-term value the University would
receive for this parcel is very small related to the
| ong-term val ue now produced for SE Al aska comunities
from SSRAA's activity on the site.

2:47: 02 PM

KENNETH DUGGETT, Executive Director, United Southeast Al aska
GIll Netters, said that the hatchery facility at Neets Bay
provi des about 50 percent of the fish caught in district one.
M. Duggett said that M. Beedle tal ked about the bears at Neets
Bay which are a byproduct of the hatchery, but the function of
the hatchery is to provide fish for the common property fishery.
Water supply is the reason the hatchery is there, and the gill-
netters believe that the devel opnent of comrercial activity is
unacceptable and cannot be done in a way that protects the

wat er . M. Duggett said that to conpromse the economc
integrity of the hatchery for a short-termsale is fundanentally
i rresponsi bl e and unaccept abl e. He referred to testinony that

the university would study the site and determ ne the best use
of the property, but M. Duggett said the best use is to provide
clean water to the hatchery, other activities would conprom se
that. The hatchery mssion is inconsistent with the m ssion of

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE -21- February 9, 2005



the University of Alaska Trust Fund, which is to raise as nuch
noney as they can.

2:50:56 PM

| VAR MALUTI N, Kodiak Area Native Association, said he was born
and raised in Kodiak and wants to protect Native rights. He
noted several events that have "choked" Native rights, including
the influx of fisherman noving to Kodiak, the earthquake, and
Wrld VWar 11. He added that there are mlitary sites on Kodiak
that used to be traditional |ands, and have been "taken away
fromus." He said the people of Kodiak are people of the sea,
"we live off the sea," he said, and the native association is
very concerned that the land transfer will elimnate access to
i nportant marine harvest areas.

2:53: 04 PM

BRUCE WALLACE, Conmmerci al Fi sherman, Board Menber, SSRAA,
reported that he concurred with M. Duggett's comments regarding
Neets Bay, and the highest and best use of the areas is for the
hat chery.

2:54: 01 PM
JOHN MARTIN JR  Tenakee Tri bal Council of Elders, Tenakee

Springs, said he is a tribal descendent fromthe Tenakee Tlingit
Nation - the Tenakee Tribe - and an anbassador to Nations. He

said that the council vehenently opposes HB 130, "if it involves
even one footstep on tribal lands - that would be the whole of
Tenakee Inlet." M. Martin said the inlet is owned by the

Tenakee Tribe and predates "your state governnent and predates
the birth of your nation. Qur lands are not for negotiation or
trade...our land is not about cash and it is not covertly
di sgui sed as research |land or educational land, it's about the
survival of our sovereign tribal nenbershinp. Qur clainms are
valid and they're existing and are owned by the Tenakee Tribe in
perpetuity.”

2:56:27 PM

JOHN MARTIN SR. Tenakee Springs, told the commttee the Tlingit
nanme he was born with and said his mssionary nane is John
Martin Sr. He said he was born in Tenakee Springs in 1935. He
said that Tenakee |and nust be withdrawn from all consideration
until the "recognition process has been acconplished. Tenakee
has valuable land in the area and they have been treated |ike an

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE -22- February 9, 2005



orphan child." He said Tenakee was left out of the Al aska
Native Clainms Settlenent Act, "and now you want to take the | ast

link of this heritage." He said the Tenakee Tribe was
recogni zed by President Roosevelt in 1935. "My preference is
that this parcel is given back to the Tenakee Nation while the
state is in a giving nood." M. Mirtin said he also nade a
statenent to Senator Lisa Miurkowski "that all |and exchanges -
| and issues - cease until they deal with our precious |and on
Chi chagof Island and adjacent water sites." He added that, "W

gi ve speci al recognition that we are not opposing the
university."

3:00: 50 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said that sone maps are showing trails
that haven't been reserved, such as in Neets Bay, and he wants
to know why it doesn't show access. He said he wants to
preserve all access.

3:02: 38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO pointed out DNR s fact sheet describing the
land chosen for transfer, which reads (original punctuation
provi ded) :

does not include any producing oil and gas or mnera
properties, nor legislatively designated Sate Gane
Refuges, Critical Habitat Areas, Parks, or Public Use
Ar eas.

MR. LOEFFLER responded that the term "public use areas" refers
to lands that are legislatively designated as "public use" and
that would be the Nelchina Public Use Area and the Mat-Su Valley
Moose Range.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX said she has emails from constituents to
beconme part of the record.

CO CHAI R RAMRAS encouraged committee nenbers to talk to himif

they wanted to slow the process down or alter it. He said he
wants to nake sure the issue is given "plenty of sunlight.” He
said he wants people to feel that they will get "a good, clean

fair hearing on this."

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said that he wants an explanation
regarding section 6, where there appears to be quite a few

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 23- February 9, 2005



changes in the repeal and he would Iike an explanation on why
the legislature is elimnating current public policy sections.

[ HB 130 was hel d over.]

ADJ OURNVENT

There being no further business before the conmttee, the House

Resources Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at 3:04:45
PM

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 24- February 9, 2005



